
 
OFFICIAL 

 
 

Agenda 

 
Notice of a public meeting of  General Licensing and Registration 

Sub-Committee 

To: Councillors Barbara Brodigan, Tim Grogan and 
Malcolm Taylor. 

Date: Tuesday, 19th March, 2024 

Time: 2.00 pm 

Venue: Council Chamber - Civic Centre, St Luke's Avenue, 
Harrogate, HG1 2AE 

 

Members of the public are entitled to attend this meeting as observers for all those items 
taken in open session. Please contact the named democratic services officer supporting 
this committee if you have any queries. 
 
Recording is allowed at Council, committee and sub-committee meetings which are open 
to the public. Please give due regard to the Council’s protocol on audio/visual recording 
and photography at public meetings. Anyone wishing to record is asked to contact, prior to 
the start of the meeting, the named democratic services officer supporting this committee.  
We ask that any recording is clearly visible to anyone at the meeting and that it is non-
disruptive. 
 

Business 
 
1.   Election of Chair  
 To elect a Member to act as Chair of the meeting. 

 
2.   Apologies for Absence 

 
 

3.   Disclosures of Interest  
 Councillors are invited to declare at this point any disclosable pecuniary interests 

they have in items appearing on this agenda, including the nature of those 
interests. 
 

4.   Procedure for Meeting (Pages 3 - 4) 
 To confirm the procedure to be followed at the meeting. 

 
5.   Exclusion of the Press and Public  
 To consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 

Public Document Pack

Page 1



 
 

OFFICIAL 

Act 1972 excluding the press and public from the meeting during consideration of 
item 6 on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information 
as defined in paragraph 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act. 
 

6.   Application to renew a Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licence for a 
vehicle over 10 years of age from first registration – Plate 100C 

(Pages 5 - 20) 

 To receive a report from the Corporate Director of Environment 
 

 
Agenda Contact Officer: 
Dawn Drury, Democratic Services Officer 
Tel: 01757 292065 
Email: dawn.drury@northyorks.gov.uk 
 
Monday, 11 March 2024 

Page 2



 
 

 

 
General Licensing and Registration Sub-Committee 

 
Procedure 

 
 

Introduction 
 

1. The Sub-Committee will conduct its hearings fairly, observing the basic rules of 
natural justice.  

 
2. Each hearing will take the form of a discussion led by the Chair and cross 

examination will not be permitted unless the Sub-Committee considers that cross 
examination is necessary. 

 
3. Hearings will be held in public but the Sub-Committee may decide to exclude the 

public from all or part of a hearing where it considers the public interest in doing so 
outweighs the public interest in the hearing taking place in public. In this context 
“public” includes any party to the hearing or any representative of a party. 

 
 

Procedure 
 

4. At the beginning of the meeting the Chair shall:- 
 

a) ask those present to introduce themselves; 
b) explain the procedure; 
c) ask the parties whether they wish permission for another person to appear at 

the hearing.   
 

5. The Sub-Committee will consider requests from the parties for permission for other 
persons to appear at the meeting.  Such permission will not be unreasonably 
withheld.   

 
6. The Chair will conduct the hearing taking representations from the parties in the 

following order: 
 

a) the Licensing Officer who will outline the background to the case. The 
Licensing Officer’s role is to provide factual information to the Sub-
Committee. 
 

b) the applicant/licence holder (including any person appointed to represent the 
party or any other persons who have been given permission to assist the 
party). 
 

c) any party making representations (including any person appointed to 
represent the party or any persons who have been given permission to assist 
the party). 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



 

-  

 
7. Before determination, the applicant/licence holder will be given the final opportunity 

to address the Sub-Committee. 
 

8. Each party will be given an equal maximum period of time in which to put forward 
any additional information requested by the Council, to question other persons (if 
given permission by the Sub-Committee) and address the Sub-Committee. 

 
9. The Sub-Committee may exclude disruptive persons in certain circumstances. 

 
10. The Sub-Committee may adjourn the hearing in certain circumstances. 

 
11. The Sub-Committee will ask the parties to withdraw so that it can consider its 

determination.  In considering its determination, the Sub-Committee may ask its 
Legal Advisor to provide it with legal and procedural advice.  The nature of this 
advice will be notified to the parties. 

 
12. The Sub-Committee will make its determination at the end of the meeting and this 

will be confirmed in writing. 
 
Failure of Parties to Attend a Hearing 
 

13.  If a party has informed the Council that they do not intend to attend or be 
represented at a hearing, the hearing may proceed in their absence. 
 

14. Where a party has not so indicated fails to attend or be represented at a hearing the 
Sub-Committee may: 
 

a) where it considers it to be necessary in the public interest, adjourn the 
hearing to a specified date; or 
 

b) hold the hearing in the party’s absence. 
 

15. Where the hearing is held in the absence of a party, the authority shall consider at 
the hearing of the application, representation or notice made by that party.  
 

16. Where a hearing is adjourned to a specified date the Council will notify the parties 
of the date, time and place to which the hearing has been adjourned.   

 
 
 
April 2023 

Page 4



 

 

OFFICIAL 

North Yorkshire Council 
 

General Licensing and Registration Sub-Committee 
 

19 March 2024 
 

Application to renew a hackney carriage vehicle licence for a vehicle over 10 years of 
age from first registration – Plate 100C  

 

Report of the Corporate Director of Environment. 
 

1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to determine an application to renew a hackney carriage vehicle 
licence for a vehicle over 10 years of age from first registration. 

 
2.0 SUMMARY 
 
2.1 The applicant is seeking to have this vehicle re-licensed, but this does not comply with 

Council policy in that it was 10 years old on 14 March 2023.  The current hackney carriage 
licence expires on 31 March 2024 and therefore the vehicle requires re-licensing.  This 
report details the relevant legislation and matters to be considered when making the 
decision.  

 
3.0 BACKGROUND – The licensing of hackney carriage vehicles 
 
3.1 The Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 and Town Police Clauses Act 

1847 requires that that hackney carriage vehicles are to be licensed. 
 
3.2 The criteria applying to this application involves consideration as to whether the vehicle is 

suitable as determined under Section 47 of The Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976 and also the North Yorkshire Council Hackney Carriage and Private 
Hire Licensing Policy. 

 
3.3 Section 47 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 allows the local 

authority to attach any conditions that the district council may consider reasonably 
necessary to licence a vehicle for hackney carriage work. 

 
3.4 Section 47 of the the North Yorkshire Council Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing 

Policy states: - 
 

“The licensing authority will only generally issue a licence in respect of a hackney carriage 
vehicle if it is less than 10 years old (the age of the vehicle shall be taken from the date of 
first registration shown on the vehicle registration document, V5C).  The policy with regards 
to vehicle specification shall be applied in the majority of cases when considering licensing 
applications, but the licensing authority will consider each application on its individual merits 
and may, at times, allow exceptions to this policy. Where exceptions are made in this 
regard, vehicles shall be subject to three mechanical inspections each year”  
 
The full policy can be found here: 
NorthYorkshireCouncilHackneyCarriageandPrivateHireLicensingPolicy.pdf 

 
  

Page 5

Agenda Item 6

https://www.northyorks.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2023-03/NorthYorkshireCouncilHackneyCarriageandPrivateHireLicensingPolicy.pdf


 

 

OFFICIAL 

The policy goes on to say that a vehicle will fail an inspection, and therefore not be fit to be 

licensed, if any of the following apply:- 

 

 Lights inoperable, damaged, mis-aligned or of insufficient intensity  

 Spare wheel, jack and wheelbrace (or manufacturers’ alternative) not provided and secured  

 Insufficient, damaged or worn seatbelts  

 Loose, damaged, missing or defective mirrors  

 Leaks, excessive wear, damaged or insecure pipes  

 Excessive smoke emission  

 Excessive corrosion/damage, unsightly appearance, poor repair/paint match staining, sharp 
edges  

 Visible rusting  

 Significant dents or scratches  

 No separation of luggage space from passenger seating area  

 Meter not linked to roof sign  

 Meter not sealed  

 Damaged/illegible/insecure plate  

 Insecure roof sign, inconsistent/insufficient illumination or excessive damage to wiring  

 Defective locks, windows, door lights or damaged/missing door seals  

 Excessive dirt, stains, holes or tears  

 Any other reasonable cause 

 
4.0 DETAILED PRESENTATION OF THE SUBSTANTIVE ISSUE 
 
4.1 The vehicle in question, which carries up to 4 passengers, is a grey Skoda Superb. It has a 

1968cc diesel engine.  The vehicle has covered approximately 240,000 miles and has a 
Council compliance test in force until 15 March 2024 (at time of the report being written but 
will be renewed).  The vehicle was first registered on 14 March 2013, which means the 
vehicle is just over 11 years old.  The proprietor has applied to renew the hackney carriage 
vehicle licence for a further 12 months contrary to the approved policy which states that 
vehicles should not normally be licensed beyond the age of 10 years old.  The application 
can be found at appendix 1 

. 
4.2 Photos of the vehicle can be found at appendix 2. 
 
4.3 Licensed vehicles are required to undertake a compliance test periodically, the frequency 

determined by the age of the vehicle.  Copies of the last 2 years inspection reports can be 
found at appendix 3. 

 
4.4 The proprietor will be presenting the vehicle for inspection on the day of the panel hearing. 
 
4.5 The panel has the following options when considering this matter. 

(1) To grant the application for a period of 1 year.  
(2) To refuse the application  

 
5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED  
 
5.1 All options are detailed in this report.  There are no alternatives. 
 
6.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 There are no financial implications. 
 
7.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

Page 6



 

 

OFFICIAL 

 
7.1 If Members decide not to allow the vehicle to be licenced there is a right of appeal for the 

licence holder to the Crown Court.  
 
8.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 No impacts have been identified. 
 
9.0 CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 None identified. 
 
10.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 None identified. 
 
11.0 CONCLUSIONS 
 
11.1 Members are asked to consider the vehicle proprietors application, the relevant legislation, 

and North Yorkshire Council Licensing policy to decide whether the application for a hackney 
carriage vehicle licence should be granted or refused. 

 
12.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
12.1 The Council has a duty through the hackney carriage and private hire licensing regime to 

protect the public 
 

13.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 

13.1 Members are asked to consider the information presented in relation to the application 
and to determine one of the following actions: 
 

(1) To grant the application for a period of 1 year.  
(2) To refuse the application  

 

 
 APPENDICES: 
 

Appendix 1 – Vehicle renewal application form. 
Appendix 2 – Photos of the vehicle 
Appendix 3 – MOT/Compliance test reports 

 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 
 
None 
 
Karl Battersby 
Corporate Director – (Environment) 
County Hall 
Northallerton 
29 February 2024 
 
Report Author – Chris Doyle – Licensing Enforcement Officer 
Presenter of Report – Chris Doyle – Licensing Enforcement Officer 
 
Note: Members are invited to contact the author in advance of the meeting with any detailed queries 
or questions. 
  

Page 7



 

 

OFFICIAL 

 
Appendix 1 

 

Page 8



 

 

OFFICIAL  

Page 9



 

 

OFFICIAL 

 Page 10



 

 

OFFICIAL 

 
          Appendix 2  
 

 
 

Page 11



 

 

OFFICIAL 

Page 12



 

 

OFFICIAL 

Page 13



 

 

OFFICIAL 

 
  

Page 14



 

 

OFFICIAL 

 
          Appendix 3 

 
 

Page 15



 

 

OFFICIAL 

 
 
 

Page 16



 

 

OFFICIAL 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 17



 

 

OFFICIAL 

 
 
 
 
   ******************************************************** 
 
 
 

 
 

 
    
 
 
 

 

Page 18



 

 

OFFICIAL 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Procedure for Meeting
	6 Application to renew a Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licence for a vehicle over 10 years of age from first registration – Plate 100C

